
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

23 November 2021 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Regulatory Board 
DATE: 1 December 2021 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor,   (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio) 

 
Councillor Mrs Hook (Chairman) 
Councillor Casey (Vice-Chair) 

 

Councillor Mrs Batty 
Councillor Carter 
Councillor Earle 
Councillor Foster-Reed 
Councillor Hammond 
 

Councillor Mrs Jones 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Mrs Morgan 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Westerby 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 

iv. Please wear a mask when moving around the Council Chamber and take a lateral flow test 

before attending  

 



Regulatory Board 
1 December 2021 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

3.   Minutes of the meetings held on 6 October 2021 and 2 
November 2021 (Pages 1 - 14) 

 

 To sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the meetings of 
the Board held on 6 October 2021 and 2 November 2021 
 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 29  November 2021 The 
total time for deputations in favour and against shall not exceed 10 
minutes) 
 
 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such questions (s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon 
Monday 29 November 2021) 
 

 

6.   Report of the Development Manager (Pages 15 - 22)  

 Schedule of planning applications with recommendations. 
 
 

 

7.   Any Other Items   



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board 
6 October 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 6 OCTOBER 2021 

 
 
 
Councillors Mrs Hook, Casey, Mrs Batty, Earle, Foster-Reed, Hammond and Mrs Jones 
 
 
77. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none.  
 
78. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none.  
 
79. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 1 SEPTEMBER 2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 September 2021 be signed as a 
true and correct record.  
 
80. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
A deputation was received on item 21/00101/FULL  
 
81. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
82. REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER  
 
21/00101/FULL - CONVERSION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS TO FORM 10NO. HOUSES 
AND 8NO. FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING, REFUSE STORAGE AND 
LANDSCAPING. RESUBMISSION OF PLANNING APPLICATION 20/00262/FULL (as 
amended by plans received 27 May 2021) [AMENDED DESCRIPTION] 

      113 Whitworth Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3NL     

 
 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to application 21/00101/FULL.           
 
The Board was advised that an additional consultee response had been received from HCC 
Highways and in their response have noted that the existing access which is to be retained 
and reused is 4.1m in width. It would be requested that the initial 6.0m of the access from 
the Highway is extended to a minimum 4.5m width to allow for vehicles to pass each other if 
trying to access and egress the site at the same time. 
 
The Board was also advised that further comments had been received from an existing 
objector reiterating objections in respect of impact on parking, congestion and highway 
safety.  

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board 
6 October 2021 

 

2 

 
The Board was advised that the matters raised by the objection received had been 
addressed within the officer’s report. 
 
In respect of the comments made by the Highways Officer, there was capacity on site to 
accommodate the widening of the access by 0.4 of a metre along the first 6 metres of its 
length without affecting any other element of the proposal. Accordingly it is considered 
reasonable to recommend the imposing of an additional condition requiring the submission 
of a plan showing the access arrangements as set out by the Highway Authority be 
submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority and then requiring the access to 
be provided in accordance with the approved plan prior to first occupation of the 
development.   
 
It was therefore proposed that an additional condition, condition 14 be applied to the 
recommendation as follows.  
 
Condition 14 a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought 

into use until a plan showing the access to the site to measure 4.5 
metres in width along the first 6 metres of its length has been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

  b) The access shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details and shall thereafter be retained as such. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety, and to comply with Policy 
LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 

 
 
 
Mr Ramsey was invited to address the Board. He advised that he was the agent, 
representing the applicant and that the report was being presented to the Board again after 
a refusal.  
 
The previous application had been refused for 5 reasons, parking, refuse and recycling 
storage, nitrates, the impact of the proposal on the local special protected areas and the 
lack of cycle parking.  
 
The Board was advised that work had been undertaken with the planning officers to 
overcome these issues and that a draft legal agreement was in place. This had led to the 
planning officers presenting a positive recommendation to the Board.  
 
The Board was advised that the development was sustainable, that is reused an existing 
building, rather than build from new and that the proposal was on a site of a previous 
builders yard which had many vehicle visits when it was in use.  
 
The Board was advised that the proposal was for 18 1 and 2 bedroomed properties and 
that there was 24 unallocated parking spaces which met the requirements.  
 
There was a draft legal agreement in place which addressed the refuse on site and the 
proposed additional condition would be acceptable.  
 
In addition, the draft legal agreement addressed the nitrates and the Solent Protection 
Area.  



Regulatory Board 
6 October 2021 

 

3 

 
There was now an over provision of cycle storage and it was reiterated that all of the 
previous reasons for refusal had now been overcome and the development was 
sustainable.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that some of the existing flats 
were occupied.  
 
The Board was also advised that the parking would be managed by the residents on site 
and was only to be used by them. This formed part of the draft legal agreement.  
 
Members felt that although the criteria for parking had been met, it was not sufficient for the 
proposal. Members were advised that although electric charging points were desirable, they 
were not a requirement when the proposals were for the repurposing of existing buildings.  
 
Mr Ramsey advised the Board that the proposals could not control the parking matters 
outside the development and acknowledged that the existing problems with parking on 
double yellow lines needed to be addressed appropriate enforcement authority.  
 
The Board was advised that the builder’s yard was last used in 2017. 
 
A Member advised that they were uncomfortable with the proposal as it only just met the 
parking requirements, acknowledging that use as a builder’s yard had been limited to 
daytime. They felt that the increase in traffic in the evening, particularly with the Swimming 
Pool use would exasperate existing problems with parking and traffic. They felt that the 
development had been shoe-horned in and was not acceptable.  
 
RSEOLVED: That application 21/00101/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager and the additional condition 14 that  
 
a) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought into use until a plan 

showing the access to the site to measure 4.5 metres in width along 
the first 6 metres of its length has been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

  b) The access shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details and shall thereafter be retained as such. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety, and to comply with Policy 
LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 

   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 
83. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
The Board was advised that mitigation options for the nitrates issue that has been 
preventing the positive determination of a number of residential planning applications were 
progressing. The Board were advised that the Council was on the verge of completing the 
first legal agreement with a third party mitigation provider and that a second is likely to be 
completed shortly. Discussions are progressing with two other third party mitigation 
providers to complete further agreements to aid developers to secure the necessary 
mitigation  to support development proposals.  
 



Regulatory Board 
6 October 2021 

 

4 

The Board was also advised that there was the potential for an extraordinary meeting in 
early November.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.32 pm 

 
 



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 2 NOVEMBER 2021 

 
 
 
Councillors Mrs Hook, Casey, Mrs Batty, Earle, Foster-Reed, Hammond and Murphy 
 
 
84. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none.  
 
85. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Mrs Hook advised that she had a personal interest in item 2, as her husband was 
an unpaid director of the Thorngate Trust and that she would be leaving the room and take 
no part in the discussion or voting.  
 
 
86. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
Deputations were received on the following grey sheet items: 
Item 1 – 20/00473/ OUT – Gosport Marina  
Item 2 – 21/00143/FULL – Land adjacent to Grove Road and Sealark Road.  
 
 
 
 
87. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
88. REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER  
 
20/00473/OUT  HYBRID PLANNING APPLICATION COMPRISING FULL APPLICATION 
FOR (I) PART DEMOLITION, EXTENSION AND REFURBISHMENT OF STS DEFENCE 
BUILDING; (II) DEMOLITION OF EXISTING CAFE AND MARINA TRADE CENTRE AND 
ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY MARINA FACILITIES BUILDING; (III) RELOCATED 
BOAT STORAGE DRY STACK; (IV) RECONFIGURATION OF EXISTING CAR PARK, 
HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING AND BOUNDARY TREATMENTS; AND (V) OUTLINE 
APPLICATION FOR UP TO 70 RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED CAR 
PARKING (WITH ALL MATTERS OTHER THAN ACCESS RESERVED) (as amended by 
plans and documents received 13 May 2021 and additional amendments and 
documentation received 23 August 2021) 
 
Gosport Marina Mumby Road Gosport Hampshire PO12 1AH  
 
The Planning Officer advised that there was an update in that following discussions with the 
applicant in order to agree pre commencement conditions as required by National Planning 
Guidance, changes to the conditions had been recommended. These changes 

Public Document Pack



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

2 

accommodate the applicants anticipated phasing of works and remove a duplicated 
condition. 
 
Mr Cardy was invited to address the Board.  
 
He advised that wanted to tell the Board of the impact the proposal would have on the 
residents of the Quarterdeck and was representing them.  
 
He advised the Board that the Quarterdeck was located on the Marina site, but was 
freehold and that the existing Boathouse café was well used by residents. Many of the 
residents had boats and were welcoming of the development of the Marina.  
 
The main objection was to the proposal of a three storey building that was too close to the 
Quarterdeck and that the design drawings only showed the applicants perception of the 
view of the proposed building, and not the proposal in relation to the existing Quarterdeck 
building.  
 
He advised the Board that the proposed replacement for the Boathouse was three times the 
size and therefore had the potential for three times as many customers on site, meaning it 
would be busier and there would be an increase in demand on car parking spaces.  
 
He advised the Board that if the proposal had been in a more traditional residential area, 
the proposal would need to be located 21m away from the existing property and would not 
be so high and suggested that the proposed facility be moved further away along the east 
west shoreline to illuminate the close proximity to the Quarterdeck.  
 
Mr Cardy advised the Board that the applicant had made incorrect statements on their 
application a number of times and that this could be seen as the application had been 
corrected upon resubmission and that the applicant had not discussed the proposal with 
residents. Errors included compass direction and the incorrect labelling of local water and 
felt that these showed that the applicant did not understand the site.  
 
He advised the Board that mistakes made in the construction of Charles House, both at 
initial construction in 2000 and the additional storeys in 2002 that had led to a cramped 
residential property had not been learnt from and that the proposal did not need to be 
located in such close proximity to the Quarterdeck and that the amenity of the residents 
should be protected, and a site visit undertaken to see the impact of the proposal first hand.  
 
He advised that placing a building of the proposed size so close to the residential block 
would damage amenity and set an unhelpful precedent in the Borough.  
 
Peter Bradshaw was invited to address the Board. He advised that he was the Chief 
Executive of Premier Marinas and was responsible for the application and the masterplan 
for the site.  
 
He advised that the site needed regeneration as it was 40 years old and that there were a 
number of structural challenges on the site.  
 
He advised the Board that the current marina facilities were located too far away from the 
water’s edge and that the development of the masterplan of the site had taken sometime 
and was fragmented as a result of the staggered acquisition of areas of the site.  



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

3 

 
The Board was advised that the regeneration was now required as a main tenant had 
approached the owners of the Marina and advised that that if the facilities were not 
improved they would have to relocate from the Marina and leave the Borough. It was 
essential that the facilities were closer to the waterside.  
 
Mr Bradshaw advised the Board that the building of concern had been moved once and the 
location of the staircase had been moved and additional screening proposed to reduce the 
impact. An agreement had also been reached to condition the hours that the outside area 
could be used.  
 
The building could not be located any further west as it would impact on the boat yard and 
the lifting to the dry stack.  
 
He concluded by advising that the proposal was essential for the future of Gosport Marina 
and that it would be a significant investment to it.  
 
Jonathan Hogan was invited to address the Board. He advised that he was a director of 
CBRE the planning agent for the application.  
 
He advised the Board that it was a complex application that included residential, leisure, 
community and retail use. He advised it would be a vibrant development within the Borough 
the design would improve the site.  
 
The Board was advised that the proposal had been submitted originally in December 2020 
and that supplementary information had been provided, engagement with local residents 
had taken place leading to the creation a viable configuration of the site. The proposal was 
a positive step for residents and users of the site.  
 
He advised that discussions had taken place with local residents and the facilities had been 
moved west from the original plans to increase the distance from the Quarterdeck, had 
agreed to restrictions on hours and had increased the screening to 1.7m.  
 
He advised the building was high quality, 2 storey with pitch gable ends and would be a 
quality addition to the waterfront, linking with the millennium promenade.  
 
He concluded by requesting that the application be approved to allow the site to be 
developed, at significant investment to enhance residential, employment and leisure 
opportunities in the Borough.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, it was clarified that the positioning of the proposed 
staircase shown in picture 1 of Mr Cardy’s deputation had been moved. It was now located 
on the frontage and the end of the building located closest to the residential development 
would not be accessible by pedestrians. In addition, the privacy screens had been 
increased in size to further protect the amenity of residents.  
 
The Board was advised that no.3 drawing was to scale.  
 
The applicant confirmed that the proposed siting of the building had been moved following 
consultation with the residents of Quarterdeck and the new proposal moved it as far away 
as was viable.  



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

4 

 
The Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer read a deputation from the Ward Councillor, 
Councillor Mrs Cully.  
 
There are aspects of the development plan that will see an improvement for employment 
and facilities on the site however following several visits I am concerned about the following 
points. 
The new marina services building on the site of the existing boat house café has caused 
alarm to the residents of Quarterdeck. The new building will be three storeys bringing it to 
the height of the highest floor of Quarterdeck and the public restaurant veranda area will be 
level with the balcony of the second-floor flats facing it. See images taken from a flat 
showing the new height and proximity of the building.  It was suggested that this new 
building could be moved further to the west and still be in a good position for users to 
access the jetty. The space between the new marina services building and Quarterdeck 
could be used for the additional parking that this larger venue will need. Meeting on site 
with the planning officer was helpful and pointing out the boats that are lined up by the 
footpath awaiting the crane to either dry stack them or move them elsewhere again showed 
there was room to move to the west of the site and still provide access to the services. This 
area would still provide good access to the marine customers and allow the footpath to 
continue on the existing line. The increase in the capacity of the restaurant should merit 
additional parking spaces but we see a reduction of 48 spaces across the site which are 
already well used. This along with the planned 70 residential units still to be finalised brings 
into doubt if sufficient capacity has been provided. 
 
The conditions to insist on opaque glazing to the first-floor elevation of the new building and 
the privacy screening glass to 1.75 metres on the balustrade are welcomed but hi light the 
proximity and loss of privacy impact on Quarterdeck residents. The limitation to operational 
hours to help mitigate the noise and disturbance are necessary and it is hoped that patrons 
will respect the needs of the residents Smoking outside of premises can become a 
gathering point where sound is harder to contain.    
 
In regard to the impact on Viewpoint residents of the outline plan for 70 residential units the 
lack of light and privacy will be detrimental. A tall building to the east will see a loss of 
daylight on these homes for most of the day. Any windows above first floor on a building 
facing Viewpoint would enable direct views into their homes. The area is poorly served for 
visitor parking the impact of proposed bus use on Mumby Road will impact further on the 
pedestrian access in this vicinity. 
 
To gain a true picture of how close and high the marina services building will be and the 
proximity to Viewpoint for the outline plan merits a site visit by members and I would ask 
that the board takes this action before reaching a decision on this application.               
 
 
Councillor Meenaghan was invited to address the Board as Ward Councillor.  
 
She advised the Board that she recognised that an improved café would increase footfall 
and trade business to the area but acknowledged that this would be to the detriment of the 
residents of the Quarterdeck.  
 
She expressed concern that there was a lack of green parking options and understood that 



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

5 

although there was no right to a view, the impact of the proposed building would impact on 
the vista.  
 
Residents had paid substantial amounts of money to enjoy unparalleled views of 
Portsmouth Harbour and beyond and this was being compromised by the proposal. The 
proposed facilities building should be moved, as presented by Mr Cardy and the priority 
should be that the residents are secure, not overlooked and subjected to fishbowl living.  
 
Councillor Meenaghan expressed concern that there was to be a reduction in car parking 
spaces. There was currently 60 covers in the café, and this would be increased threefold. 
This would place greater demand on the reduced number of spaces.  
 
It was acknowledged that the Boathouse had been a very popular facility and it was hoped 
that the new facility would be as popular, but there was a concern that it would overwhelm 
the car parking facility. Concern was also expressed that there was no secure large scale 
cycle storage or electric car parking points.  
 
Councillor Meenaghan expressed concern at the outline proposal for 70 dwellings at the 
southern end of the site, and again acknowledged that the impact on the view was not a 
planning consideration, but that there would be a detrimental impact on the neighbouring 
residents. The neighbouring block was designated for elderly people, some of whom could 
not leave home. The sanctuary of views over Portsmouth Harbour was often the only 
comfort they had as they were housebound and this would be replaced with brick wall.  
 
Concern was also expressed that there would be an additional strain on demand for car 
parking.   
 
In addition, with proposals to amend the transport hub, buses would travel across the High 
Street and turn to pass the supermarket and the proposed development. This would 
increase the traffic demands surrounding the development, on top of the additional 
residential vehicles.  
 
All of the combined elements would lead to unsafe roadways for cyclists and increased 
demand on the road. It was acknowledged that the proposal was for outline planning 
permission, but Councillor Meenaghan advised that she wished to endorse the proposal for 
a site visit.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the facilities building was the 
height of 3 storeys, but only had 2 floors.  
 
A Member advised that they did not feel that the site would struggle with the demand for 
parking  
 
A Member recognised that it was important to make the correct decision and proposed that 
a site visit be made. This was not seconded.  
 
Members recognised that there was a need for the development of the Marina and that it 
would enhance the area.  
 
Members expressed concern that there was an application for a significant amount of 
properties that may impact on the parking provision.  



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

6 

 
Members recognised that the developer had spoken to residents and had adapted their 
plans to address some of the concerns raised.  
 
Members also acknowledged that there would be neighbouring properties that would have 
their view impacted as a result of the development, which would be frustrating if they had 
paid a premium for them.   
 
RESOLVED: That application 20/00473/OUT be approved subject to the completion of a 
Section 106 agreement and subject to the conditions in the report of the Development 
Manager.  
 
 
 
21/00143/FULL  - ERECTION OF A TWO AND THREE-STOREY BUILDING TO 
ACCOMMODATE 39 AGE-RESTRICTED, ASSISTED LIVING APARTMENTS (CLASS 
C3) WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS INCLUDING ACCESS, PARKING, LANDSCAPING 
AND FELLING OF T1 OF TPO G.141, WORKS TO BE CARRIED OUT IN TWO PHASES 
(PHASE ONE 30 UNITS AND PHASE TWO 9 UNITS WITH ALTERATIONS TO SOUTH 
ELEVATION) (DEPARTURE FROM LOCAL PLAN) (as amended by plans and 
supporting documents received 01.09.21, 06.09.21, 10.09.2021 & 12.10.2.2021 and by 
Phase 2 reptile survey received 05.10.2021) 
 
Land Adjacent To Grove Road And Sealark Road Gosport Hampshire  
 
Councillor Mrs Hook declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item and left 
the room, taking no further part in the discussion or voting thereon.  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing application 
21/00143/FULL. 
 
The Board was advised that there was three updates. Firstly, in the plans condition, site 
section B has been listed twice and one can be omitted as this is an error. The applicant 
has also provided plan numbers for site sections, A, B and C, to insert these into condition 
two for clarity. Secondly, three additional representations have been received, taking the 
total number to the amended plans to 15. Finally, the Local Highways Authority have 
removed the first part of their objection in relation to the accident history as stated in their 
recent comments. However, they maintain the second part of their objection in relation to 
access and the visibility splay. If members consider it is appropriate, condition 10 can be 
amended to include the submission of additional details in respect of access and visibility 
splays. But, for reasons outlined in the officer’s report, the recommendation remains 
unchanged.  
 
 Michelle Collins was invited to address the Board. She advised that she lived in Grove 
Road and was representing the residents in the locality and would be representing their 
views in her deputation.  
 
The Board was advised that there was significant concern for the tree on site that was 
subject to a Tree Preservation order and that previous proposals had included the 
preservation of the tree. Whilst the residents were accepting that there was an inevitability 
to the land being built on, it was felt that any development should keep the tree.  



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

7 

 
It was felt that the new proposal was ugly and overbearing as was not in keeping with the 
surrounding area and was a development that prioritised quantity of units rather than 
quality.  
 
The proposal was for a 3 storey building which there was currently none of in Grove Road 
and this would set a precedent.  
 
In addition, there was only 11 parking spaces for residents and concern was expressed that 
parking would therefore overspill onto the surrounding roads.  
The proposed units were double units, with priority given to couples, this therefore had the 
potential for a huge demand in parking spaces and in addition, there was no Electric 
Vehicle charging points.  
                   
Concern was expressed that the development was located close to a park and a school and 
that it would increase the risk of an accident.  
 
Additional concerns were expressed that the proposal would need conditions to mitigate the 
impact on the nesting birds on the site. There was also concern about potential flooding 
from the drainage as the existing system was under pressure. It was felt that the proposal 
was too big, and out of keeping and that other similar sites were allocated for development 
with far fewer units proposed.  
 
The residents understood that the site would likely be built on, however it was felt that more 
consideration should be given to protecting the tree and that a more appropriate site for the 
development should be found.  
 
Members questioned what additional measures and conditions could be placed on the 
application to protect the wildlife and ensure that its removal was sensitive. This should be 
not only for the protect species, but also those that were not such as squirrels and foxes.  
 
Andrew Tregay was invited to address the Board. He advised that he was the agent for the 
application.  
 
He advised the Board that he was asking for consideration for an increased number of units 
as the units proposed were in high demand. He advised that the charity with specialist and 
local interest that could not currently keep up with demand.  
 
The population was aging and it was predicted that this would increase further by 2029 and 
that the demand for such properties would increase. There had been no concerns from 
Natural England, no concerns from Environmental Health and the concerns of Hampshire 
Highways had been addressed.                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
The Board was advised that it was regrettable that the tree needed to be removed, but all 
options had been considered. There would be replacements planted to offset the loss of the 
tree and the properties were desperately needed.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
 
Ann Taylor was invited to address the Board and advised that she was the Chief Executive 
of the Thorngate Trust. The model was that of an Almshouse with history back to 1870. 
They were warden supported and had long waiting lists. As the properties were 
Almshouses, they could not be sold under right to buy, they would always be affordable 



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

8 

rented provision. Residents included those in the 80’s and 90’s and the majority were 
single, most of them had no cars.  
 
There had been contact from residents of Hardway who wished to remain in the area but 
needed this type of residential option.  
 
The existing provision of the charity was full, and they desperately needed to provide 
additional units.    
 
A Member questioned that with 39 double units there was the potential for nearly 80 cars, 
there was only 21 car parking spaces. The Board was advised that most would be occupied 
by single persons who would not have cars. There was a far greater demand for storage of 
mobility scooters, which the application provided. Space to store mobility scooters was a far 
greater asset and allowed residents to remain independent for longer.  
 
A car parking survey had been undertaken and had considered the parking movements at 
the existing facilities. Whilst the applicant accepted that parking spaces on developments 
were a hot topic, the balance of providing space for mobility scooters was of far greater 
need and importance. The traffic survey undertaken had shown that the need for vehicle 
spaces was much less than a typical development.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that there was no requirement 
for there to be an electric vehicle point but the provision for one in future could be made.  
  
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the original application of 28 
units had been increased to 39 to allow the infrastructure for both phases of the 
development to be built. The additional units would form part of the second phase, but 
permission needed to be granted for both.  
 
The proposal presented was comprehensive and once funding was in place, both phases 
would be completed.  
 
The Board was advised that the site was ideal for the proposal as it was located on a bus 
route and that the trust had been looking for a suitable site for a number of years. This site 
was both viable and well located.  
 
It was recognised that significant work had been undertaken to try and protect the tree and 
it was appreciated that it was subject to a Tree Preservation Order, however the site would 
be far more viable if it was removed. Further work would need to be undertaken on the 
ground conditions, but any concerns raised would be dealt with.  
 
If the tree remained the development would be pushed closer to the neighbouring 
properties.  
 
A Member questioned whether consideration was being given to the offsetting of the carbon 
deficit that would occur when the older establish tree was removed and the newer trees 
replaced it. It was suggested that an amendment be proposed to ensure that the 
replacement trees planted covered the deficit from the offset.  
 
Councillor Furlong was invited to address the Board. She advised that she was speaking as 
ward Councillor.  



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

9 

 
It was acknowledged that something needed to be done to the site, but had been speaking 
to residents about their concerns about the proposal and that there were some proposals 
for the site that were preferable than others.  
 
Concern had been expressed about flooding and drainage on the site, there were existing 
concerns about the site that affected properties in Lapwing Close and Bittern Close and as 
yet these had not been remedied by Southern Water. There was concerned that a three 
storey development on the site would exacerbate the problem. There was concern that the 
water level had previously been high on the site.  
 
Concern was also expressed that the land on site was contaminated and that there would 
be significant overlooking into neighbouring properties. There would be a loss of light to 
properties and impact on the boundaries.  
 
 There was great concern regarding the wildlife on site particularly the badgers that had 
been displaced when the Priddy’s Hard estate had been built.  
 
Significant concern had been raised about the Oak tree on site. Concern was expressed 
that the replacements would be targeted by vandals and that value of the TPO should be 
taken into consideration. The Board was advised that newer, smaller trees did not absorb 
carbon as well as well-established trees and the tree should be looked after.  
 
There was a precedent that could be set by allowing the development to progress both in 
terms of the protection of the tree and the type of development and that the proposed local 
plan had indicated that the site was more suited to a smaller development with fewer units.  
 
There were no three storey houses in Grove Road and the proposal was out of keeping 
with the surrounding area.  
 
A resident had advised that there were significant wildlife habitats on the site and that there 
would need to be careful management of their removal as each species had a different 
requirements. In addition, previous surveys on the land had shown it to be contaminated 
and this would need to be addressed.  
 
Concern was expressed about traffic safety in the area however the Board was advised that 
on crash map there had been one incident listed,  
 
Further concern was raised about the removal of the tree and it was questioned whether 
there was a purpose to a TPO if they were not adhered to. The Board was advised that 
TPOs were based on the amenity of tree at the time the order was made, it was accepted 
that the value of the tree may decline and this particular tree had lost a significant limb and 
that should a request be made now it would be borderline as to whether a TPO would be 
made.   
 
Members continued to express concern that the replacement trees were not sufficient to 
replace what would be lost and requested that further consideration be given to amending 
the recommendation to ensure that sufficient replacement was made.  
 
 



Regulatory Board 
2 November 2021 

 

10 

The applicant confirmed that they were willing to address any matters that arose from the 
report on ground conditions on the site.  
 
The Board was advised that the developer’s contribution would be used to enhance the 
neighbouring open space. The site was underused and it would be difficult to provide space 
on the site, therefore the funds would be used to enhance nearby spaces  
 
A Members advised that they had spoken to the Tree Officer and that it had been advised 
that there would need to be an increase in the number of trees planted to compensate for 
the carbon absorption for the one that was removed.  
 
It was felt that a proposal should be made to ensure this happened as the applicants were 
willing to for the additional trees required.  
 
The Board was advised that it would only be possible to delegate authority to the 
Development Manager to agree the contribution towards tree planting as it would not be 
possible to detail the carbon absorption.  
 
It was suggested that the amended proposal to element four of the section 106 agreement, 
that officers be delegated authority to renegotiate the provision of trees to be provided.  
 
This was proposed seconded and subsequently agreed.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00143/FULL be approved subject delegated authority 
being given to the Development Manager to renegotiate element 4 of the Section 106 
agreement and subject to the conditions in the report of the Development Manager.  
 
 
 
21/00452/FULL - PARTIAL RETENTION OF AND FURTHER WORKS FOR THE 
ERECTION OF TWO REAR DORMERS (CONSERVATION AREA) (REVISED 
APPLICATION TO 21/00294/FULL) (as amended by plans received 19.10.21)  
 
20 Atkinson Close Gosport Hampshire PO12 2BZ  
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager detailing application 
21/00452/FULL. 
 
RESOLVED: That application 21/00452/FULL be approved, subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager. 
 
89. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
There were none.  
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 8.02 pm 

 
 



Regulatory Board Agenda: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 1 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD  
 
1st December 2021 
 
ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 

be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the 
meeting.  Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the 
Regulatory Board is to be held. 

 
2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 

time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation. 

 
3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection 

by Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 
above. 

 
4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with 

a summary of each recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item 6



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 2 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
INDEX 

 
Item Page 

No 
Appl. No. Address Recommendation 

 
 

01. 03-
06/1 

21/00076/FULL Haslar Marina  Haslar Road  
Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 
1NU   

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
02. 07-09 21/00481/TPO 19 Queens Road  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO12 1LJ     
Grant Consent 
subject to Conditions 

 
 
  



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 3 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

ITEM NUMBER: 01.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00076/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr Lay, Boatfolk Ltd 
DATE REGISTERED: 19.02.2021 

 
ERECTION OF AN OPEN AIR BAR AND RESTAURANT WITH MARQUEE ON NEW 
PONTOONS (as amplified by as amplified by Construction Management Statement and 
Shadow HRA received 17 May 2021) 
Haslar Marina  Haslar Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1NU   

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1.  The application site is located in the mooring area located to the east of the Millennium 
Walkway within an area operated by Haslar Marina. The site is located in the 'crook' of the pier to 
the north west of the Trinity Lightship restaurant. The application site falls outside of the urban area 
boundary being located over the water of Portsmouth Harbour leading to Haslar Lake. The site is 
also adjacent to Haslar Lake/Portsmouth Harbour Special Protection Area/Ramsar Site and Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). 
 
2.  The proposal is for the construction of a new restaurant with bar sited on a pontoon at the north 
eastern end of the existing marina measuring 18 metres by 11.5 metres upon which would be 
erected a 12 metre deep and 9 metre wide marquee with a pitched roof to a height of 4.8 metres, 
eaves of 2.3 metres in height and gables to the northern and southern elevations.  At the northern 
end of the marquee would be sited a timber building forming a kitchen and bar with associated 
storage.  The kitchen / bar building would be 8 metres in width, 4.8 metres in depth and have a 
mono-pitched roof with eaves at 2.2 metres in height and a maximum height of 2.75 metres.   
 
3. The closest dwellings to the proposed development lie within Seaward Tower to the west of the 
site and are in excess of 150 metres at their closest point from the proposal. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
18/00118/FULL - erection of part three storey, part single storey building to form boat workshop 
(class B8) and showroom (class A1), erection of single storey boat sales centre (class a1), erection 
of terrace of single storey storage units (class B8), alterations to car park layout and existing 
slipway, change of use and extension of existing offices to form restaurant (class A3), change of 
use of existing restaurant to shop (class A1), offices or light industry use (class B1), erection of 
single storey office building (class B1) and alterations and extensions to existing pontoons to 
provide 50 additional berths - permitted - 07/2/2019 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP42  International and Nationally Important Habitats 
 LP43  Locally Designated Nature Conservation Sites 
 LP44  Protecting Species and Other Features of Nature Conservation Importance 

LP46  Pollution Control 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Waterfront and Town Centre:  Supplementary Planning Document:  

March 2018 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 4 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

Consultations 
  
 Queen's Harbour Master No objection. 
  
 HCC Ecology No objection subject to conditions to restrict 

noise and light output. 
  
 Natural England No objection. 
  
 Environmental Health No objection. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
12 letters of objection received to original proposal. 
Issues raised: 
- the proposal will exacerbate existing parking issues in the area. 
- noise and odours arising from the proposal will disturb and be of detriment to the amenities of 

residents of Seaward Tower 
- the proposal will give rise to antisocial behaviour 
- the proposal will lead to additional light pollution 
- no toilets are included in the proposal which will lead to nuisance to neighbours 
- the proposal will lead to pollution of the sea 
- there are existing facilities of this type in the area 
- the proposal is out of keeping with its surroundings 
- the proposal will spoil views across the harbour 
- customers of the proposed restaurant will have access to the marina compromising the marina's 

security 
 
5 letters of objection to revised proposal. 
Issues raised: 
- the proposal will give rise to antisocial behaviour 
- the proposal will lead to additional light pollution 
- no toilets are included in the proposal which will lead to nuisance to neighbours 
- the restaurant at Penarth was constructed at the same time as the marina 
- the restaurant at Penarth has adequate parking 
- the proposal will spoil views across the harbour 
- customers of the proposed restaurant will have access to the marina compromising the marina's 

security 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1.  Objectors to this proposal have raised concerns with regard to the impact of the proposal upon 
views across the harbour from neighbouring dwellings. The right to a view is not a material 
planning consideration. The proposal would make use of the existing sanitary facilities within the 
marina. This application must be considered on its own merits having regard to the circumstances 
of the site, rather than other similar facilities operated by the applicant elsewhere. The main issues 
therefore are whether the proposal is acceptable in principle and whether it is acceptable in design, 
amenity, ecology and highway terms. 
 
2. The proposal is an appropriate recreational use outside of the Urban Area Boundary and is 
therefore considered acceptable in principle. The pontoons and piles are to be located below Mean 
High Water, adjacent to the existing marina moorings, and will be in keeping with the existing 
structures in the locality. The pontoons themselves will not have a noticeable impact and therefore 
would not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the coast and are considered 
acceptable in design terms.  As such the proposals would accord with Policies LP3 and LP10 of 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan. 
 
3.  The proposed restaurant and bar marquee and the associated kitchen and bar building would 
be seen as it rises up from the pontoon level to the quay side as the tide rises. The quay side area 



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 5 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

is currently the Millennium Walkway and beyond this to the west of the proposal lie the flats within 
Seaward Tower which are 150 metres from the application site at their closest point.  Given the 
scale of the proposals and their design, the separation distance together with the fact that the 
structures would rise and fall relative to the neighbouring dwellings with the motion of the tides it is 
considered that they would not present any detrimental impacts in the form of loss of light, 
overbearing, unneighbourly outlook or loss of privacy to the amenities of the occupiers of Seaward 
Tower or any other nearby dwellings.  
 
4.  The proposed use seeks operating hours from 09:30 to 22:30 daily and these hours are 
considered to be reasonable and would avoid unnecessary noise and disturbance impacts to 
neighbours of the site, particularly in view of the 150 metre separation from the site and the nearest 
residential properties to it. Concerns have been expressed by objectors to the proposal with regard 
to antisocial behaviour arising from the proposal.  The applicant has indicated that 80% of the trade 
for the proposal will arise from persons already within the marina or having arrived by boat, the 
remainder of the patrons would come from outside the site and would be pre booked in order to 
gain access to the site.  As such the proprietor would be in a position to regulate the clientele. 
Added to this the hours of business proposed will prevent late night use and any associated 
potential for unwarranted disturbance.  As such, the proposal is considered acceptable in amenity 
terms and complies with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan in this regard. 
 
5.  Neither Natural England nor the County Ecologist have raised any concerns with regard to the 
proposals impact upon protected habitats or species, subject to a condition requiring the 
submission and approval of a lighting and noise management plan prior to first occupation.  Given 
the sensitivity of the surrounding environment, such a condition is considered to be both 
reasonable and necessary.  The proposals are in keeping with the existing recreational marine 
oriented use of the site. Subject to the above condition, the proposal would not adversely impact 
on the interests of nature conservation interests of the adjacent SPA/Ramsar Site/SSSI, in 
accordance with Local Plan Policies LP42, LP43 and LP44. 
 
6. No additional parking is proposed in association with this proposal and the applicant states that 
the parking associated with the proposal will be accommodated in the existing marina car park or 
the other public car parking facilities nearby. The applicant has also advised that approximately 
80% of the customers for the proposal will be from persons within the marina complex who have 
already parked at the marina or have arrived at the site by boat and would not require vehicle 
parking. It is noted that there are a number of Council and public car parks within the vicinity of the 
site which would be available to patrons of the proposed development as well as any capacity 
available in the existing marina car park.  As such it is considered that the proposal would not lead 
to any additional pressure for on street parking that would be detrimental to highway safety or the 
amenities of existing residents of the area.  The marina has an existing restaurant use adjacent to 
the application site and the applicant has stated that the servicing arrangements for this use would 
also be utilised for the proposed use.  A condition requiring the submission of a Delivery and 
Servicing Plan for the proposal is considered to be both reasonable and necessary to ensure that 
such operations can be carried out without detrimental impacts upon highway safety or upon the 
convenience of other highway users.  Given the recommendation of such conditions it is 
considered that the proposal would be in accordance with Policy LP23 of the Local Plan. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 6 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
1567-PL-03 PROPOSED SITE PLAN, 1567-PL-04 PLANS AND ELEVATIONS, 1567-PL-01 THE 
LOCATION PLAN.  
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture, those detailed in section 7 of 
the application forms and Drawing Number 1567-PL-04 PLANS AND ELEVATIONS unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  a) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or brought into use until 
i) a scheme specifying the provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the site 
has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority; 
ii) the noise mitigation scheme approved pursuant to part a)i) of this condition has been 
implemented. 
b)  The noise mitigation measures shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises, to ensure the mitigation of 
potential adverse effects of the development and to prevent harm to nearby protected sites and to 
comply with Policies LP10, LP44 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 5.  a) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or brought into use until: 
i) a scheme specifying the provisions to be made for the control of light emanating from the site 
has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority; and 
ii) the light mitigation scheme approved pursuant to part a)i) of this condition has been 
implemented. 
b)  The light mitigation measures shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises, to ensure the mitigation of 
potential adverse effects of the development and to prevent harm to nearby protected sites and to 
comply with Policies LP10, LP44 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 6.  a) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied or brought into use until: 
i) a scheme specifying the provisions to be made servicing and deliveries to the premises has been 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority; and 
ii)  the servicing and delivery scheme approved pursuant to part a) of this condition has been 
implemented. 
b)  The measures approved within the service and delivery plan shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises and highway safety, and to 
comply with Policies LP10, LP23 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 7.  The use hereby permitted shall only be open to customers between the hours of 09:30 and 
22:30. 
Reason - In order to protect the amenities of the area and to comply with Policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 7 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 02.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00481/TPO  
APPLICANT: Mr Graham Chetwynd   
DATE REGISTERED: 15.09.2021 

 
CROWN THIN BY 20% AND CROWN LIFT OF UP TO 5 METRES TO 1NO. HORSE 
CHESTNUT TREE, POLLARDING OF 4NO. POPLAR TREES BACK TO PREVIOUS 
POLLARDING POINTS (APPROXIMATELY 10 METRES), CROWN THIN BY 20% AND 
REDUCTION OF OVERHANGING BRANCHES BY 3 METRES TO 1NO. HOLM OAK, 1NO. 
HORSE CHESTNUT AND 1NO. HOLLY TREE AND CROWN REDUCE AND RESHAPE 
BY 3 METRES TO 1NO. ASH TREE (TPO G.7) (CONSERVATION AREA) 
19 Queens Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1LJ     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The trees, the subject of this application are located at the front of the property within the Stoke 
Road Conservation Area and are protected under TPO G.7 which was implemented in 1973.  
 
2. It is proposed to crown thin by 20% and crown lift up to 5m to 1 Horse Chestnut Tree, pollarding 
to previous points to 4 Poplar Trees, crown thin by 20% and reduce overhanging branches by 3m 
to 1 Holm Oak Tree, 1 Horse Chestnut Tree and 1 Holly Tree and crown reduce and reshape by 
3m to 1 Ash Tree. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
17/00221/TPO - reduce crown spread by 15% to 1no. Horse Chestnut Tree (T.40 of TPO G.7) 

(Conservation Area) - permitted 25.07.17 
12/00443/TPO - felling of 1no. Poplar (T.8 of TPO G.7) and 1no. Chestnut (T.43 of TPO G.7) 

(Conservation Area) - permitted 19.12.12 
09/00270/TPO - crown reduction of 1no. Horse Chestnut Tree (T40 of TPO G.7) (Conservation 

Area) - refused 24.08.09 
06/00356/TPO - various works to 10no. Trees (TPO G.7) (Conservation Area) - permitted 01.08.06 
01/00438/TPO - felling of Elm Tree and lopping of 5no. Lombardy Poplar Trees (T.46,3,4,6,7 & 16 

of TPO G.7) (Conservation Area) (as amplified by letter dated 23.03.01) - 
permitted 06.04.01 

96/00317/TPO - Implementation of Tree maintenance scheme (TPO - G7) (Conservation Area) - 
permitted 17.01.97 

92/18335/TPO - topping and lopping of 12 Trees (TPO G.7) - permitted 19.02.92 
83/18332/TN - lopping of 4 no. Trees - (Tree Preservation Order G.7) - permitted 09.03.83 
79/18326/TN - lopping and thinning of Horse Chestnuts Evergreen Oak and Poplars - (Tree 

Preservation Order G.7) - permitted 10.07.79 
73/33622/TO - Tree Preservation Order - blanket order Trees Bourton House Grounds - confirmed 

09.04.73 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP10  Design 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
Consultations 
  
 Streetscene Parks & Horticulture No objection. 

The proposed works would be considered 
appropriate management of the trees given 
their species, position, age, condition and 



Regulatory Board: 1st December 2021 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-22.11.21 Page 8 of 8 DC/UNI-form Template 

form. The pruning specification would not be 
expected to have a detrimental impact on 
tree health or life expectancy. 

  
 The Gosport Society No objection in principle. Defer to view of 

Council's Arboricultural Officer. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter of objection 
Issues raised:- 
- the proposed works are unnecessary and excessive. 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues to consider are the acceptability of the proposed works in relation to the tree's 
current health and amenity value, and to their contribution to the character and appearance of the 
area and the Stoke Road Conservation Area within which it is located. 
 
2. The trees are clearly visible from Queens Road. They are a prominent feature at 19 Queens 
Road and make a positive contribution to the appearance of the area. The trees are generally 
healthy and the proposed works would be considered appropriate in this context and would not 
prejudice the long term health or amenity value of the trees. The proposals would therefore 
preserve the appearance of the Conservation Area and comply with policy LP10 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
3. In order to ensure the works are carried out in an appropriate manner it is considered necessary 
and appropriate to impose a planning condition requiring the works to be carried out by a suitably 
qualified or experienced agriculturalist. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Consent 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The works hereby consented must be begun within a period of two years beginning with a date 
on which this consent is granted. 
Reason - To maintain, as far as possible, the appearance of the area and in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 17 if the Town and Country Planning Tree Preservation (England) 
Regulations 2012. 
 
 2.  In accordance with the details of your application no works to the trees the subject of this 
consent shall take place other than:- 
crown thin by 20% and crown lift of up to 5 metres to 1no. Horse Chestnut Tree, pollarding of 4no. 
Poplar Trees back to previous pollarding points (approximately 10 metres), crown thin by 20% and 
reduction of overhanging branches by 3 metres to 1no. Holm Oak, 1no. Horse Chestnut and 1no. 
Holly Tree and crown reduce and reshape by 3 metres to 1no. Ash Tree 
Reason - In the interests of amenity and to maintain, as far as possible, the appearance of the 
area. 
 
 3.  The works hereby consented shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 
(2010) by a qualified tree surgeon. 
Reason - In the interests of amenity and to maintain, as far as possible, the appearance of the 
area. 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 6 October 2021 and 2 November 2021
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 02/11/2021 Regulatory Board
	Minutes


	6 Report of the Development Manager

